
83 Broadway, Newburgh, NY  12550 

(845) 569-7369   idadirector@cityofnewburgh-ny.gov

BOARD MEETING 

Monday October 21, 2024, 6pm 

83 Broadway, 3rd floor, Newburgh, NY 

AGENDA 
1. Roll Call

2. Proof of Notice of Meeting

3. Appointment of officers and committees – Audit/Finance and Governance

4. Reading and approval of minutes of the previous meeting

5. Report of the Treasurer

Approval of Treasurer’s Report for June, July, August, September 2024

Approval of payment of bills for June, July, August, September 2024

6. Chairman’s Report

7. Counsel’s Report

8. Executive Director’s Report

9. New Business

Resolution # 2024-10-21-01 Housekeeping

Resolution # 2024-10-21-02 Public Hearing for 5 Scobie Drive

Resolution # 2024-10-21-03 Public Hearing for 50-72 Liberty Street LLC

mailto:idadirector@cityofnewburgh-ny.gov


2 

4883-0158-9960, v. 1

Resolution # 2024-10-21-04 SEQRA for IV 5 Newburgh South Logistics LLC 

Resolution #2024-10-21-05 Approving Resolution for IV 5 Newburgh South 

Logistics LLC 

10. Old Business

104 Washington Street

11. Adjournment



CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT OCTOBER 21, 2024 MEETING

JUNE

OPERATING Account #2847

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $378,293.94

from bank statement

Deposits Payor  Amount Remarks

6/3/2024 AT&T 3,880.29

6/4/2024 Central Hudson 2,218.94

6/4/2024 T-Mobile 5,243.79

6/26/2024 Dish Network 1,500.00

6/27/2024 Shaw Building, LP 1,000.00 Application Fee

6/28/2024 T-Mobile 5,243.79

6/28/2024 Interest Paid 1,205.89 Interest Rate 4.06%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 2847 $20,292.70

Disbursements

Payee Amount Remarks

ACH 6/1/2024 QuickBooks Online 64.88 Monthly payment

Check #1262 6/6/2024 blackDog 745.00 Invoice 1299

Check #1263 6/6/2024 MRB Group 6,000.00 Invoice 61135

Check #1264 6/17/2024 Cherisse Vickers 21.61 Reimbursed Expenses

Check #1265 6/17/2024 Adriana Huaynalaya 5.18 Reimbursed Expense

Check #1266 6/24/2024 Whiteman, Osterman & Hanna, LLP 2,773.50 Invoice 709512, 709513, 709514, 709516

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 2847 $9,610.17

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $388,976.47 Op Acct #2847

Newburgh IDA, June 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



PAYROLL Acct #8243

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $99,590.63

Debit 6/5/2024 Payroll Fees May 24 56.23

Debit 6/12/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.96 5/27/24-6/09/24

Debit 6/12/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.50 5/27/24-6/09/24

Debit 6/26/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,560.04 6/10/24 - 6/23/24

Debit 6/26/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,237.84 6/10/24 - 6/23/24

Total Monthly Payroll Expense 9,716.57

Credit 6/28/2024 Interest Paid 313.65 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $90,187.71 Payroll Acct #8243

APPLICATIONS FUND Account #2855

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $14,151.44

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $14,151.44 App Fund Acct #2855

LESSOR/TENANT Account #2863

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $2,461.34

Interest Income 6/28/2024 Interest Paid $8.07 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of June 30,2024 $2,469.41 Lessor Acct #2863

LABOR MONITORING Account #7072

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $15,014.79

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $15,014.79 Labor Monitor Acct #7072

Newburgh IDA, June 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



MONEY MARKET Account #2871

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $1,255,815.27

Interest Income 6/28/2024 Interest Paid 4,117.43                     Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of June 30,2024 $1,259,932.70 MM Acct #2871

NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER Account #6521

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $33.59

Interest Income 6/28/2024 Interest Paid 0.11 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $33.70 NSLC Acct #6521

LAKELAND BANK Account #4346

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $0.00

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $0.00 LAKELAND BANK Account #5356

LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Opening Balance As of June 1, 2024 $4,154,731.08

Closing Balance As of June 30, 2024 $4,154,731.08 LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Newburgh IDA, June 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT OCTOBER 21, 2024 MEETING

JULY

OPERATING Account #2847

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $370,255.13

from bank statement

Deposits Payor  Amount Remarks

7/2/2024 AT&T 3,996.71

7/2/2024 Central Hudson 2,218.94

7/17/2024 Orange County 39,705.78 Rent for Juy

7/31/2024 Orange County 39,705.78 Rent for August

7/31/2024 Dish Network 1,500.00

7/31/2024 Interest Paid 1,343.79 Interest Rate 4.06%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 2847 $88,471.00

Disbursements

Payee Amount Remarks

ACH 7/1/2024 QuickBooks Online 64.88 Monthly payment

Check #1267 7/2/2024 Whiteman, Osterman & Hanna, LLP 745.00 Invoice 709515

ACH 7/8/2024 Gannett NY-NJ LocaliQ 144.63 7/25/24 Public Hearing

Check #1268 7/9/2024 black dog DESIGNS, LLC 8,696.99 Remaining 65% for Invoice NIDA101923

Check #1269 7/9/2024 Adriana Huaynalaya 45.32 Reimbursed Expense

Check #1270 7/9/2024 MRB Group 1,256.25 Invoice 616611

Check #1272 7/9/2024 Cherisse Vickers 53.59 Reimbursed Expense

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 2847 $11,006.66

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $447,719.47 Op Acct #2847

Newburgh IDA, July 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



PAYROLL Acct #8243

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $90,187.71

Debit 7/2/2024 Payroll Fees June 24 69.21

Credit 7/10/2024 Partial Refund for Payroll Fees June 24 12.98

Debit 7/10/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,402.87 6/24/24-7/07/24

Debit 7/10/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,168.93 6/24/24-7/07/24

Debit 7/24/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.95 7/08/24 - 7/21/24

Debit 7/24/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.52 7/08/24 - 7/21/24

Total Monthly Payroll Expense 9,490.50

Credit 7/31/2024 Interest Paid 290.11 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $80,987.32 Payroll Acct #8243

APPLICATIONS FUND Account #2855

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $14,151.44

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $14,151.44 App Fund Acct #2855

LESSOR/TENANT Account #2863

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $2,469.41

Interest Income 7/31/2024 Interest Paid $8.37 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of July 31,2024 $2,477.78 Lessor Acct #2863

LABOR MONITORING Account #7072

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $15,014.79

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $15,014.79 Labor Monitor Acct #7072

Newburgh IDA, July 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



MONEY MARKET Account #2871

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $1,259,932.70

Interest Income 7/31/2024 Interest Paid 4,268.62                     Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of July 31,2024 $1,264,201.32 MM Acct #2871

NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER Account #6521

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $33.70

Deposits

7/18/2024 Brookfield Properties 2,310.00 Deposit for W.O.H Invoice 709509

Interest Income 7/31/2024 Interest Paid 3.40 Interest Rate 4.06%

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $2,347.10 NSLC Acct #6521

LAKELAND BANK Account #4346

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $0.00

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $0.00 LAKELAND BANK Account #4346

LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Opening Balance As of July 1, 2024 $4,154,731.08

Interest Income 7/18/2024 Interest Paid 52,511.18                   Interest Rate 5.00%

Closing Balance As of July 31, 2024 $4,207,242.26 LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Newburgh IDA, July 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT OCTOBER 21, 2024 MEETING

AUGUST

OPERATING Account #2847

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $458,451.74

from bank statement

Deposits Payor  Amount Remarks

8/1/2024 AT&T 3,996.71

8/1/2024 Central Hudson 2,218.94

8/2/2024 T-Mobile 5,260.57

8/15/2024 50-72 Liberty Street LLC 1,000.00 IDA Application fee for 1 Lafayette

8/28/2024 Dish Network 1,500.00

8/29/2024 Orange County 39,705.78

8/30/2024 Interest Paid 1,556.98 Interest Rate 4.07%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 2847 $55,238.98

Disbursements

Payee Amount Remarks

Check #1273 8/1/2024 Storage Boss 1,080.00 Storage unit renewal 

Check #1276 8/5/2024 Philadelphia Insurance Co 1,513.00 Board of Directors Insurance

Check #1277 8/8/2024 Veritext 210.25 7/25/24 Public Hearing transcript

Check #1278 8/12/2024 City of Newburgh 454.16 7/25/24 Public Hearing officers

Check #1279 8/12/2024 J&G Law, LLP 5,410.84 Invoice 318073

Check #1281 8/19/2024 MRB Group 5,633.15 Invoice 62220, 62578 

Check #1282 8/26/2024 Cherisse Vickers 37.60 Reimbursed Expense

Check #1283 8/29/2024 Office of New York State Comptroller 170.00 Government Accounting Classs

Check #1284 8/29/2024 Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP 296.94 Invoice 723923, 723788

ACH 8/30/2024 QuickBooks Online 70.28 Monthly payment

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 2847 $14,876.22

Newburgh IDA, August 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $498,814.50 Op Acct #2847

PAYROLL Acct #8243

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $80,987.32

Debit 8/5/2024 Payroll Fees July 24 69.21

Debit 8/7/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.96 7/22/24-8/04/24

Debit 8/7/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.50 7/22/24-8/04/24

Debit 8/21/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.96 8/05/24 - 8/18/24

Debit 8/21/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.50 8/05/24 - 8/18/24

Total Monthly Payroll Expense 9,794.13

Credit 8/30/2024 Interest Paid 255.05 Interest Rate 4.07%

Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $71,448.24 Payroll Acct #8243

APPLICATIONS FUND Account #2855

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $14,151.44

Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $14,151.44 App Fund Acct #2855

LESSOR/TENANT Account #2863

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $2,477.78

Interest Income 8/30/2024 Interest Paid $8.39 Interest Rate 4.07%

Closing Balance As of August 31,2024 $2,486.17 Lessor Acct #2863

LABOR MONITORING Account #7072

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $15,014.79

Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $15,014.79 Labor Monitor Acct #7072

Newburgh IDA, August 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



MONEY MARKET Account #2871

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $1,264,201.32

Interest Income 8/30/2024 Interest Paid 4,283.09 Interest Rate 4.07%

Closing Balance As of August 31,2024 $1,268,484.41 MM Acct #2871

NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER Account #6521

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $2,347.10

Deposits

8/22/2024 Brookfield Properties 2,030.00 Deposit for W.O.H Invoice 717769

Interest Income 8/30/2024 Interest Paid 9.40 Interest Rate 4.07%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 6521 $2,039.40

Disbursements

8/26/2024 Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP 2,030.00 Invoice 717769

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 6521 $2,030.00

Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $2,356.50 NSLC Acct #6521

LAKELAND BANK Account #4346

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $0.00

Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $0.00 LAKELAND BANK Account #5356

LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Opening Balance As of August 1, 2024 $4,207,242.26

Newburgh IDA, August 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



Closing Balance As of August 31, 2024 $4,207,242.26 LAKELAND BANK Account #5683

Newburgh IDA, August 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT OCTOBER 21, 2024 MEETING

SEPTEMBER

OPERATING Account #2847

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $490,055.70

from bank statement

Deposits Payor  Amount Remarks

9/1/2024 AT&T 3,996.71

9/4/2024 T-Mobile 5,308.81

9/4/2024 Central Hudson 2,218.94

9/23/2024 Orange County 39,705.78

9/30/2024 T-Mobile 5,308.81

9/30/2024 Dish Network 1,500.00

9/30/2024 Interest Paid 1,610.02 Interest Rate 4.02%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 2847 $59,649.07

Disbursements

Payee Amount Remarks

Check #1285 9/3/2024 MRB Group 1,200.00 Invoice 62721

Check #1286 9/1/2024 black dog Designs, LLC 745.00 Invoice 1554

Check #1287 9/10/2024 Cherisse Vickers 21.61 Reimbursed Expense

Check #1288 9/10/2024 black dog Designs, LLC 1,490.00 Invoice 1472, 1431

Check #1289 9/10/2024 Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP 3,377.00 Invoice 723781

Check #1290 9/26/2024 MRB Group 12,000.00 Invoice 63225, 63226, 63227

Check #1291 9/26/2024 Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP 1,395.76 Invoice 728296, 728300

ACH 9/30/2024 QuickBooks Online 70.28 Monthly payment

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 2847 $20,299.65

Newburgh IDA, September 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $529,405.12 Op Acct #2847

PAYROLL Acct #8243

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $71,448.24

Debit 9/4/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.95 8/19/24-9/01/24

Debit 9/4/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.52 8/19/24-9/01/24

Debit 9/5/2024 Payroll Fees August 24 56.23

Debit 9/18/2024 Net Pay (part of gross wages) 3,604.96 9/02/24 - 9/15/24

Debit 9/18/2024 Employer Payroll Tax + Employee WH (part of gross wages) 1,257.50 9/02/24 - 9/15/24

Total Monthly Payroll Expense 9,781.16

Credit 9/30/2024 Interest Paid 210.31 Interest Rate 4.02%

Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $61,877.39 Payroll Acct #8243

APPLICATIONS FUND Account #2855

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $14,151.44

Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $14,151.44 App Fund Acct #2855

LESSOR/TENANT Account #2863

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $2,486.17

Interest Income 9/30/2024 Interest Paid $8.05 Interest Rate 4.02%

Closing Balance As of September 30,2024 $2,494.22 Lessor Acct #2863

LABOR MONITORING Account #7072

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $15,014.79

Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $15,014.79 Labor Monitor Acct #7072

Newburgh IDA, September 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



MONEY MARKET Account #2871

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $1,268,484.41

Interest Income 9/30/2024 Interest Paid 4,106.98 Interest Rate 4.02%

Closing Balance As of September 30,2024 $1,272,591.39 MM Acct #2871

NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER Account #6521

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $2,072.00

Deposits

9/6/2024 Brookfield Properties 3,430.00 Deposit for W.O.H Invoice 723782

Interest Income 9/30/2024 Interest Paid 2.66 Interest Rate 4.07%

TOTAL DEPOSITS 6521 $3,432.66

Disbursements

Check #1008 9/9/2024 Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP 3,430.00 Invoice 723782

TOTAL CHECKS & DISBURSEMENTS 6521 $3,430.00

Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $2,074.66 NSLC Acct #6521

PROVIDENT BANK Account #4346

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $0.00

Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $0.00 PROVIDENT BANK Account #4346

PROVIDENT BANK Account #5683

Opening Balance As of September 1, 2024 $4,207,242.26

Newburgh IDA, September 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



Closing Balance As of September 30, 2024 $4,207,242.26 PROVIDENT BANK Account #5683

Newburgh IDA, September 2024 Monthly Treasurer's Report



 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-01 

INTERIM HOUSEKEEPING RESOLUTION  

 

A regular meeting of City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 

was convened in public session at City Hall, 83 Broadway, Newburgh, New York on October 21, 

2024, at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 

called, the following members of the Agency were: 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Christina Amato 

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

Alexandra Church 

Vickiana DeMora 

Sharonda Powell 

 

ABSENT: 

 

  

 

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 

 

Cherisse Vickers Executive Director 

Robert J. McLaughlin, Esq. and 

David Craft, Esq. 

 

Agency Counsel 

  

 

The following resolution was offered by ______________, seconded by ___________, to 

wit: 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 

authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 

constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 

Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act” or the “Act”) and Chapter 577 

of the 1982 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 913 of said General Municipal 

Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) 

to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, 



 

2 

 
4876-5164-4912, v. 3 

improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, 

commercial, and research and recreation facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, 

attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 

opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New 

York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and 

economic deterioration; and 

 

WHEREAS, under Section 858 of the Act, the Agency has the power to make certain 

appointments and approve certain administrative matters; and 

 

WHEREAS, under Section 856 of the Act, the members of the Agency shall elect the 

officers of the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Agency’s Policy Manual, the Agency shall review its policies and 

by-laws on an annual basis. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF 

NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Agency hereby takes the following actions: 

 

(A) Approves and confirms the Appointment of Executive Director and Staff 

to the Agency; (iii) the appointment of Officers of the Agency; and (iii) appointment of members 

of the Agency Committees, all as described on Exhibit A, as the same may have been amended 

previously to or at this meeting. 

 

Section 2. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chairperson, the Executive Director 

and Agency Counsel to take all steps necessary to implement the matters described in Exhibit A 

attached. 

 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

 

 



 

3 

 
4876-5164-4912, v. 3 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

Christina Amato VOTING  

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

Alexandra Church 

VOTING 

VOTING 

VOTING 

 

Vickiana DeMora VOTING  

Sharonda Powell VOTING  

 

 

The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 



 

4 

 
4876-5164-4912, v. 3 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) SS.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

 

I, the undersigned Secretary of City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”), do hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the 

meeting of the members of the Agency held on October 21, 2024 with the original thereof on file 

in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of the whole of said 

original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due 

notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with such Open Meetings 

Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said 

meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Agency this __ day of October, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 Secretary 

 

 

(SEAL) 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

 

 

1. Appointment of Executive Director and Staff to the Agency 

 

 Cherisse Vickers – Executive Director 

 Adriana Huaynalaya – Financial Administrator 

 

2. Officers of the Agency: 

 

     Name      Title 

 

        Chairperson 

        First Vice Chairperson 

        Treasurer 

       Secretary 

3.  Committee Assignments for 2024/2025 

 Finance Committee: 

 

 Audit Committee: 

 

 Governance Committee: 

 

 



 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-02 

 
A regular meeting of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at City Hall, 83 Broadway, 3rd Floor, Newburgh, New York October 21, 2024, 

at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being called, the 

following members of the Agency were: 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Christina Amato  

Gregory Nato  

Michael Neppl  

Alexandra Church  

Vickiana DeMora  

 Sharonda Powell    

 

ABSENT: 

 

 

 

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 

 

Cherisse Vickers Executive Director 

Robert J. McLaughlin, Esq. and 

David Craft, Esq. 

 

Agency Counsel 

 

 

The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by ___________________, to 

wit: 

 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-02 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR OR THE VICE CHAIR OR ANY OFFICER OF 

THE CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC 

HEARING REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF SCOBIE INDUSTRIAL PARTNERS, LLC, AND TO SEND A LETTER TO THE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES INFORMING 

THEM OF A PROPOSED DEVIATION FROM THE AGENCY'S UNIFORM TAX 

EXEMPTION POLICY IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED PROJECT.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 



 

 

2 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 

(the “Enabling Act” or the “Act”) and Chapter 577 of the 1982 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting 

Section 913 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter 

collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, 

constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, 

warehousing, research, commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, 

attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, 

health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their 

prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the 

Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act), or to cause 

said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease 

said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency owns certain real property located at 5 Scobie Drive, Newburgh. New 

York (the “Property”) by deed from the City of Newburgh; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Agency and the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

(“DEC”) entered into a Brownfield Site Cleanup Agreement (“Brownfield Cleanup Agreement”) that 

contemplated investigation and potential remediation of contamination on or around the Property (the 

“Work”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals for the sale and development of the 

Property on or about June, 2019 (the “RFP”); and 

 

WHEREAS, in response to the RFP, the Agency received two proposals; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the meeting of the Agency held on December 16, 2019, the Agency determined to 

proceed with the negotiation of a contract of sale with Scobie Industrial Partners, LLC, a New York limited 

liability company (the “Company”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency entered into a Contract of Sale for the Property with the Company on or 

about July 30, 2022, as amended; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the stated consideration in the Contract of Sale for the Property, the 

Company agreed to bear responsibility for the entire costs of the required clean-up of the Property under 

the Brownfield Cleanup Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, DEC agreed to amend the Brownfield Cleanup Agreement to, among other things, 

add the Company as a volunteer under the agreement responsible for implementation of the Work subject 

to the terms under the Brownfield Cleanup Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Real Property License Agreement by and between the Agency and 

Company, the Agency has granted the Company access to the Property, prior to the closing of the Contract 

of Sale for the Property, for purposes of undertaking the Work at the Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Company has designed a Remedial Action Work Plan for the remediation of the 

contamination on or around the Property; and 

 

 



 

 

3 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

 WHEREAS, the Company’s Remedial Action Work Plan has received preliminary approval from 

the State’s Department of Environmental Conservation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company desires to proceed with the purchase of the Property under the terms of 

the Contract for Sale for the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2024, the Company, or such other person(s) or entities as may be 

designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (those designated persons or entities included 

in the definition of the Company), submitted an application to the Agency, which application has been 

updated by the Company prior to this meeting (collectively, the “Application”), a copy of which Application 

is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the 

"Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) the acquisition of 

an interest in the Property, (2) the remediation of hazardous waste present on the Property pursuant to the 

Remedial Action Work Plan developed by the Company and approved by DEC, (3) the construction and 

improvement of a new warehouse distribution building on the Property totaling approximately 125,000 

square feet (the “Facility”), and (4) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures, 

machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the Property, 

the Facility, and the Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”), (B) the 

granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect 

to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real 

estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the 

lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person 

as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company requests the following Financial Assistance: a) a fifteen (15) year 

payment in lieu of tax agreement (“PILOT”) at an estimated value of Two Million Three Hundred Ninety-

Five Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-Five Dollars ($2,395,955.00); b) an exemption from mortgage 

recording taxes at an estimated value of Two Hundred Twelve Thousand Three Hundred Ten Dollars 

($212,310.00); and c) an exemption from New York State sales and compensating use taxes at an estimated 

value of Nine Hundred Fourteen Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($914,625.00); and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any 

“financial assistance” (as defined in the Act) of more than $100,000 to any project, the Agency, among 

other things, must hold a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to said project; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial 

assistance”, the Agency must obtain a written cost-benefit analysis of the Project, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Agency has previously engaged a third-party municipal services firm, MRB 

Group, which assessed the Project and developed a written cost benefit analysis which identified the 

following economic impact and benefits to the City of Newburgh from the Project: a) the construction phase 

of the Project will create 35 direct/indirect jobs that generate approximately $2,862,830.00 in wages; b) the 

Project will result in 20 permanent jobs earning approximately $1,900,000.00 in wages on an annual basis; 

c) Orange County will benefit from additional, one-time sales tax revenue of $18,787.00 associated with 

construction wages earned during the construction phase and additional sales tax revenue of $220,955.00 

related to new wages earned from permanent jobs; d) over the course of 15 years, the Project will generate 

an increase of $1,652,754.00 in additional property tax revenue on the current taxes for Orange County, the 

City of Newburgh, and the Newburgh Enlarged City School District; and 

 



 

 

4 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Application, the Company has made a request to the Agency 

(the "Pilot Request") to deviate from its Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the "Policy") with respect to the 

term of the payment in lieu of tax agreement by and between the Agency and the Company (the "Proposed 

Pilot Agreement"); and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act and the Policy, prior to taking final action on 

the Pilot Request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must give the chief executive officers of the 

County and each city, town, village and school district in which the Project is located (collectively, the 

"Affected Tax Jurisdictions") prior written notice of the proposed deviation from the Policy and the reasons 

therefore; and 

WHEREAS, the Policy provides that the real property tax abatements to be provided by the Agency 

shall apply only to the value added by an applicant's construction or renovation activities (i.e., the 

“improvements” made) to the existing parcel and improvements involved (the "Added Value"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the comparison of the current Added Value of the Project to the proposed deviation 

from the Policy proposed by the Company are set forth below:  

 

 

PILOT 

TAX YEAR 

PILOT PAYMENT 

DUE 

APPROXIMATE 

PILOT 

ABATEMENT 

PERCENTAGE* 

1 $26,170 0% 

2  $26,825 0% 

3 $62,957 85% 

4 $64,531 85% 

5 $66,145 85% 

6 $93,258 75% 

7 $95,589 75% 

8 $97,979 75% 

9 $127,845 65% 

10 $131,041 65% 

11 $134,317 65% 

12 $167,200 55% 

13  $171,380 55% 



 

 

5 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

 

 

 

 

*Chart is for illustrative purposes only.   

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 858(15) of the Act, unless otherwise agreed by the Affected Tax 

Jurisdictions, payments in lieu of taxes must be allocated among the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in 

proportion to the amount of real property tax and other taxes which would have been received by each 

Affected Tax Jurisdiction had the Project Facility not been tax exempt due to the status of the Agency; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act and the Policy, prior to taking final action on 

the request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must adopt a resolution setting forth, with respect 

to the proposed deviation: (a) the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, (b) the amount and nature of 

the proposed PILOT, (c) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation, and (d) whenever possible, 

provide the Affected Tax Jurisdictions prior written thirty (30) days’ notice of the proposed deviation from 

the Policy and the reasons therefore; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to provide for compliance with the provisions of Section 859-a 

and 874(4) of the Act with respect to the Project by scheduling a public hearing for the Project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Agency hereby induces the Project and authorizes the Chair, the Vice Chair 

or any Officer of the Agency, after consultation with the members of the Agency and Agency Counsel, (A) 

to establish the time, date and place for a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the 

Project (the “Public Hearing”); (B) to cause the Public Hearing to be held in a city, town or village where 

the Project Facility is or is to be located, and to cause notice of such Public Hearing to be given to the public 

by publishing a notice or notices of such Public Hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to 

the residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is or is to be located, such notice or notices 

to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and shall be at least thirty (30) days prior to 

the date of such Public Hearing; (C) to cause notice of the Public Hearing to be given to the chief executive 

officer of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is 

to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (D) to conduct or cause the 

holding of such Public Hearing; (E) to cause a report of the Public Hearing fairly summarizing the views 

presented at such Public Hearing (the “Report”) to be prepared; and (F) to cause a copy of the Report to be 

made available to the members of the Agency. 

 

Section 2. Having considered both the Application, the Pilot Request and the Policy, the 

Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, the Vice Chair or any Officer of the Agency, to send a written notice 

to the chief executive officers of each of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions informing them that (A) the Agency 

is considering a proposed deviation from the Policy with respect to the Project and the reasons therefore 

(in substantially the form of the draft of said letter attached hereto as Exhibit A); (B) soliciting any 

comments that such Affected Tax Jurisdictions may have with respect to said proposed deviation; and (C) 

14 $175,665 55% 

15  $211,851 45% 

16 and 

Thereafter 
Full Tax 0% 



 

 

6 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

inviting attendance of the of any representative of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions to attend the Public 

Hearing. 

Section 3. The Chair, the Vice Chair and/or any Officer of the Agency is hereby authorized 

and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform 

such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. All action taken by the Chair, the Vice Chair and/or any Officer of the Agency in 

connection with the Public Hearing with respect to the Project prior to the date of this Resolution is hereby 

ratified and confirmed. 

 

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

  



 

 

7 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 

resulted as follows: 

 

Christina Amato VOTING 

Gregory Nato VOTING 

Michael Neppl VOTING 

Alexandra Church VOTING 

Vickiana DeMora VOTING 

 Sharonda Powell   VOTING 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 



 

 

8 
4862-4813-5893, v. 8 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 ) SS.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that  

 

I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of 

the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, held on October 21, 2024 with the original thereof 

on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution 

contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein 

referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; 

(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the 

“Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place 

of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum 

of the members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force and effect 

and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 

___ day of October 2024. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 



EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF DEVIATION TO THE AFFECTED TAX JURISDICTIONS ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH AGENCY RESOLUTION DATED OCTOBER 21, 2024 



 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

83 Broadway, Third Floor 

Newburgh, New York 12551-1298 

Tel: 845-569-7369 

October ___, 2024 

CERTIFIED MAIL – RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

The Honorable Steven M. Neuhaus 

County Executive of Orange County 

Orange County Government Center 

255 Main Street 

Goshen, New York 10924 

Jackielyn Manning Campbell. 

Superintendent of Schools 

Newburgh Enlarged School District 

124 Grand Street 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Torrance Harvey, Mayor 

City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12551 

 

The Honorable Todd Venning, City 

Manager 

City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12551 

 

The Honorable Ramona Monteverde, 

Council Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDRESSEES CONTINUED  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Christine M. Bello, Board President 

Newburgh Enlarged School District 

124 Grand Street 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Giselle Martinez, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

The Honorable Robert Sklarz, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 2 

 

2 
 
4867-5743-7142, v. 6 

The Honorable Patty Sofokles, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Omar Shakur, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

The Honorable Robert McLymore, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

RE:  Proposed Deviation from Uniform Tax Exemption 
policy by the City of Newburgh Industrial 
Development Agency (“Agency”) in connection with 

its Proposed Scobie Industrial Partners, LLC Project 

Honorable Sir/Madame: 

This letter is delivered to you pursuant to Section 874(4)(b) of the General Municipal Law (the 

“Act”). 

Scobie Industrial Partners, LLC, a New York limited liability company, or such other person(s) or 
entities as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (collectively, the 
"Company"), submitted an application to the Agency, as amended (collectively, the “Application”), a copy 
of which Application is on file at the office of the Agency and available at the Agency website 
(https://www.cityofnewburgh-ny.gov/505/Industrial-Development-Agency-IDA), requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project 

consisting of the following: (A) the acquisition of an interest in a parcel of real property consisting of 
approximately 15.24 acres located at 5 Scobie Drive, Newburgh, New York (the “Land”), (2) the 
remediation of hazardous waste present on the Land pursuant to the Remedial Action Work Plan developed 
by the Company and approved by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(“DEC”), (3) the construction and improvement of a new warehouse distribution building on the Land 
totaling approximately 125,000 square feet (the “Facility”), and (4) the acquisition and installation therein 
and thereon of related fixtures, machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, 
the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
“Project Facility”), (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) 
of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, 
real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial 
Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the 

Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency.   

At its regular meeting held on October 21, 2024, the Company made a request to the Agency (the 

"Pilot Request") to enter into a payment in lieu of tax agreement (the "Proposed Pilot Agreement") which 
terms deviate from the Agency Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the "Policy"). (Capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined herein are defined in the Policy which can be viewed at https://www.cityofnewburgh-
ny.gov/industrial-development-agency/pages/ida-projects.) At its October 21, 2024 regular meeting, the 
Agency approved a Public Hearing Resolution.  The Public Hearing to consider the Project and the 

deviation from the Policy is scheduled for November __, 2024.   

Pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act, and in accordance with the Policy, prior to taking final action 
on the Pilot Request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must adopt a resolution setting forth, with 

https://www.cityofnewburgh-ny.gov/industrial-development-agency/pages/ida-projects
https://www.cityofnewburgh-ny.gov/industrial-development-agency/pages/ida-projects


 

October __, 2024 

Page 3 

 

3 
 
4867-5743-7142, v. 6 

respect to the proposed deviation: (a) the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, (b) the amount and nature 
of the proposed PILOT, and (c) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation.  At its regular meeting 
held on October 21, 2024, the Agency approved the issuance of this letter setting forth the reasons of the 

proposed deviation from the Policy as required by the Act and the Policy.     

The Proposed Pilot Agreement would be for a term of up to 15 years, with the Company making 

the payments in each year as a Pilot Payment as follows: 

[DRAFT - TO BE FINALIZED AFTER COMMENTS RECEIVED] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 *For illustrative purposes only.   

 

PILOT 

TAX YEAR 

PILOT PAYMENT 

DUE 

APPROXIMATE 

PILOT 

PERCENTAGE* 

1 $26,170 0% 

2  $26,825 0% 

3 $62,957 85% 

4 $64,531 85% 

5 $66,145 85% 

6 $93,258 75% 

7 $95,589 75% 

8 $97,979 75% 

9 $127,845 65% 

10 $131,041 65% 

11 $134,317 65% 

12 $167,200 55% 

13  $171,380 55% 

14 $175,665 55% 

15  $211,851 45% 

16 and 

Thereafter 
Full Tax 0% 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 4 

 

4 
 
4867-5743-7142, v. 6 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of (i) the Pilot Request, (ii) the proposed deviation from 
the Policy, and (iii) that the Agency is considering whether to grant the Pilot Request and to approve a 
Proposed Pilot Agreement conforming to the terms of the Pilot Request. The Agency expects to consider 
whether to approve the terms of the Proposed Pilot Agreement at the Public Hearing. The Public Hearing 
will also serve as the initial Public Hearing so that the Agency can hear comments from the public on the 
proposed financial assistance being considered for the Project.  You are encouraged to submit written 

comments to the Agency prior to or at the hearing date on November __, 2024.  This letter is 

forwarded to you for purposes of complying with Section 874 of the Act and the Policy, which requires 
notice prior to the Agency taking final action with respect to the Proposed Pilot Agreement (if said 

Proposed Pilot Agreement may deviate from the provisions of the Policy). 

The Agency has considered the following factors in considering the proposed deviation from the 

Policy: 

1. The nature of the Project: Remediation of a brownfield site and the development, 

construction and improvement of one (1) new a new warehouse distribution building on the Land 

totaling approximately 125,000 square feet. 

2. The present use of the property: vacant land.  The proposal would transform this 

vacant contaminated land into a vibrant business bringing jobs and sales tax revenue to the City. 

3. The economic condition of the area at the time of the request of the Company and 
the economic multiplying effect that the Project will have on the area: At the time of the filing of 
the Application, the economic condition of the area in which the Project Facility is to be located is 

distressed.   

4. New revenue from development of the Project is projected to be (in accordance 
with the Agency Cost-benefit Analysis): $1,652,754 in new tax revenue; $18,787 in sales tax 
revenue related to construction; $220,955 in sales tax revenue related to operating the Project 

Facility during the period of the proposed PILOT.  

5. The extent to which the Project will create or retain permanent, private sector jobs 

and the number of jobs to be created or retained and the salary range of such jobs:  

(a) In the Application, the Company’s Application anticipates that the Project will 
create approximately 20 jobs (professional, managerial, semi-skilled and unskilled) in the 
first year of development, which is expected to be maintained through the second year of 
development.  Upon completion of the Project, it is estimated that the anticipated 

employment at the Project will generate approximately $1.9 million in wages annually.  

(b) The construction phase of the Project is anticipated to create approximately 23 
direct, on-site construction jobs and 12 indirect jobs.  Combining direct and indirect 
impacts, the construction phase of the Project is expected to create 35 jobs that are expected 

to generate approximately $2.9 million in wages. The Applicant has indicated that the 
majority of the construction jobs will be filled by local labor in compliance with the 

Agency’s Local Labor Policy.   

6. The estimated value of new tax exemptions to be provided: Real property tax 
exemption benefit of approximately $2,395,955 (estimated per the Agency Cost-Benefit Analysis); 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 5 

 

5 
 
4867-5743-7142, v. 6 

mortgage recording tax exemption of approximately $212,310 (per the Application); and sales tax 

exemption benefit of approximately $914,625 (per the Application). 

7. The economic impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on affected tax 
jurisdictions: The economic impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on affected tax jurisdictions 
is positive.  The existing assessments at the Project site will be paid in full for the first time in 
decades.  The proposed PILOT Agreement will apply to the improvements made to the Project site 
and will result in an inflow of net revenue to the City, the County and the School District where 
today there is none.  The development of the Project Facility is expected to result in local 

construction jobs, the creation of permanent jobs and the development of additional retail.  

8. The impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on existing and proposed businesses 
and economic development projects in the vicinity: The impact of the Project is a positive one on 
the community.  The area around the Project is deteriorated due the land included in the Project 

being contaminated and vacant.  

9. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the 

Proposed Pilot Agreement: $26,300,000. 

10. The effect of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on the environment: The Project is 

consistent with prior approvals for similar sites which previously determined that there would be 

no detrimental impact on the environment.   

11. Project timing: Anticipated to be completed within two (2) years of the 

commencement date of approximately third or fourth quarter 2026. 

12. Development/redevelopment impacts:  The Project will bring a productive use to 

a vacant land with limited development options due to its contaminated state.               

13. Type of development:  The Project consists of the construction and development 

of one (1) new building on the Land totaling approximately 125,000 square feet for use as a 

warehouse distribution facility.   

14. Creation of jobs:  Upon its completion, the Project will bring approximately 

twenty-four (24) new direct and indirect permanent jobs to the surrounding area. 

The Agency will consider the Proposed Pilot Agreement (and the proposed deviation from the 
Policy) at the Public Hearing. The Agency would welcome any written comments that you might have on 
this proposed deviation from the Policy. In accordance with Section 874(4)(c) of the Act, prior to taking 
final action at the Public Hearing, the Agency will review and respond to any written comments received 
from any affected tax jurisdiction with respect to the proposed deviation. The Agency will also allow any 
representative of any affected tax jurisdiction present at the Public Hearing to address the Agency regarding 

the proposed deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.   

If you have any questions or comments regarding the foregoing, please do not hesitate to contact 

me at the above telephone number. 

 

Sincerely, 

 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 6 

 

6 
 
4867-5743-7142, v. 6 

 

 

 

____________________, Chair 

City of Newburgh 

Industrial Development Agency 



CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-03 

A regular meeting of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 
convened in public session at City Hall, 83 Broadway, 3rd Floor, Newburgh, New York October 21, 2024, 

at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being called, the 

following members of the Agency were: 

PRESENT: 

Christina Amato 

Adam Pollick 

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

Alexandra Church 

Sharonda Powell 

Vickiana DeMora 

ABSENT: 

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 

Cherisse Vickers Executive Director 

Robert J. McLaughlin, Esq., and 

David Craft, Esq. 

Agency Counsel 

The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by ___________________, to 

wit: 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-03 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR OR THE VICE CHAIR OR ANY OFFICER OF 

THE CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC 

HEARING REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF 50-72 LIBERTY STREET LLC, AND TO SEND A LETTER TO THE CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES INFORMING THEM OF 

A PROPOSED DEVIATION FROM THE AGENCY'S UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED PROJECT.  



 

 

2 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 

Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 

(the “Enabling Act” or the “Act”) and Chapter 577 of the 1982 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting 

Section 913 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter 

collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, 

constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, 

warehousing, research, commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, 

attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, 

health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their 

prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the 

Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act), or to cause 

said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease 

said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2024, 50-72 Liberty Street LLC (the “Company”), or such other 

person(s) or entities as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (those 

designated persons or entities included in the definition of the Company), submitted an application to the 

Agency (the “Application”), a copy of which Application is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting 

that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the "Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project 

consisting of the following: (A) the acquisition of an interest in parcels of real property consisting of 

approximately 1.344 acres located at 50-72 Liberty Street, Newburgh, New York (the “Land”), (2) the 

construction and improvement of a new mixed-use building on the Property totaling approximately 200,000 

square feet consisting of market-rate housing, affordable housing, commercial retail space and a parking 

garage (collectively, the “Facility”), and (4) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related 

fixtures, machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the 

Land, the Facility, and the Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”), (B) the 

granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect 

to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real 

estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the 

lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person 

as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company requests the following Financial Assistance: a) a thirty-two (32) year 

payment in lieu of tax agreement (“PILOT”) at an estimated value of Ten Million Seven Hundred Fifty-

Eight Thousand Two Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars ($10,758,275.00); b) an exemption from mortgage 

recording taxes at an estimated value of Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00); and c) an 

exemption from New York State sales and compensating use taxes at an estimated value of One Million 

Three Hundred Fifty-Four Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Six and 67/100 Dollars ($1,354,166.67); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial 

assistance” (as defined in the Act) of more than $100,000 to any project, the Agency, among other things, 

must hold a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to said project; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial 

assistance”, the Agency must obtain a written cost-benefit analysis of the Project, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Agency has previously engaged a third-party municipal services firm, MRB 

Group, which assessed the Project and developed a written cost benefit analysis which identified the 



 

 

3 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

following economic impact and benefits to the City of Newburgh from the Project: a) the construction phase 

of the Project will create 158 direct/indirect jobs that generate approximately $7,366,595.00 in wages; b) 

the Project will result in 14 permanent jobs earning approximately $660,000.00 in wages on an annual 

basis; c) Orange County will benefit from additional, one-time sales tax revenue of $48,343.00 associated 

with construction wages earned during the construction phase and additional sales tax revenue of 

$259,463.00 related to new wages earned from permanent jobs and additional sales tax revenue of $752,512 

related to new household spending; d) over the course of the 32 years, the Project will generate an increase 

of $4,397,467.00 in additional property tax revenue on the current taxes for Orange County, the City of 

Newburgh, and the Newburgh Enlarged City School District; and 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Application, the Company has made a request to the Agency 

(the "Pilot Request") to deviate from its Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the "Policy") with respect to the 

term of the payment in lieu of tax agreement by and between the Agency and the Company (the "Proposed 

Pilot Agreement"); and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act and the Policy, prior to taking final action on 

the Pilot Request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must give the chief executive officers of the 

County and each city, town, village and school district in which the Project is located (collectively, the 

"Affected Tax Jurisdictions") prior written notice of the proposed deviation from the Policy and the reasons 

therefore; and 

WHEREAS, the Policy provides that the real property tax abatements to be provided by the Agency 

shall apply only to the value added by an applicant's construction or renovation activities (i.e., the 

“improvements” made) to the existing parcel and improvements involved (the "Added Value"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the comparison of the current Added Value of the Project to the proposed deviation 

from the Policy proposed by the Company are set forth below:  

 

 

PILOT 

TAX YEAR 

PILOT PAYMENT 

DUE 

APPROXIMATE 

PILOT  

ABATEMENT 

PERCENTAGE* 

1 $108,750 31% 

2  $110,925 31% 

3 $113,144 31% 

4 $115,406 31% 

5 $117,714 31% 

6 $120,069 31% 

7 $122,470 31% 

8 $124,920 31% 



 

 

4 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Chart is for illustrative purposes only.   

9 $127,418 31% 

10 $129,966 31% 

11 $132,566 31% 

12 $135,217 31% 

13  $137,921 31% 

14 $140,680 31% 

15  $143,493 31% 

16 $146,363 31% 

17 $149,290 31% 

18 $152,276 31% 

19 $155,322 31% 

20 $158,428 31% 

21 $161,597 31% 

22 $164,829 31% 

23 $168,125 31% 

24 $171,488 31% 

25 $174,918 31% 

26 $178,416 31% 

27 $181,984 31% 

28 $185,624 31% 

29 $189,336 31% 

30 $193,123 31% 

31 $196,986 31% 

32 $200,925 31% 



 

 

5 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 858(15) of the Act, unless otherwise agreed by the Affected Tax 

Jurisdictions, payments in lieu of taxes must be allocated among the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in 

proportion to the amount of real property tax and other taxes which would have been received by each 

Affected Tax Jurisdiction had the Project Facility not been tax exempt due to the status of the Agency; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act and the Policy, prior to taking final action on 

the request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must adopt a resolution setting forth, with respect 

to the proposed deviation: (a) the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, (b) the amount and nature of 

the proposed PILOT, (c) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation, and (d) whenever possible, 

provide the Affected Tax Jurisdictions prior written thirty (30) days’ notice of the proposed deviation from 

the Policy and the reasons therefore; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to provide for compliance with the provisions of Section 859-a 

and 874(4) of the Act with respect to the Project by scheduling a public hearing for the Project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Agency hereby induces the Project and authorizes the Chair, the Vice Chair 

or any Officer of the Agency, after consultation with the members of the Agency and Agency Counsel, (A) 

to establish the time, date and place for a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the 

Project (the “Public Hearing”); (B) to cause the Public Hearing to be held in a city, town or village where 

the Project Facility is or is to be located, and to cause notice of such Public Hearing to be given to the public 

by publishing a notice or notices of such Public Hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to 

the residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is or is to be located, such notice or notices 

to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and shall be at least thirty (30) days prior to 

the date of such Public Hearing; (C) to cause notice of the Public Hearing to be given to the chief executive 

officer of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is 

to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (D) to conduct or cause the 

holding of such Public Hearing; (E) to cause a report of the Public Hearing fairly summarizing the views 

presented at such Public Hearing (the “Report”) to be prepared; and (F) to cause a copy of the Report to be 

made available to the members of the Agency. 

 

Section 2. Having considered both the Application, the Pilot Request and the Policy, the 

Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, the Vice Chair or any Officer of the Agency, to send a written 

notice to the chief executive officers of each of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions informing them that (A) 

the Agency is considering a proposed deviation from the Policy with respect to the Project and the 

reasons therefore (in substantially the form of the draft of said letter attached hereto as Exhibit A); (B) 

soliciting any comments that such Affected Tax Jurisdictions may have with respect to said proposed 

deviation; and (C) inviting attendance of the of any representative of the Affected Tax Jurisdictions to 

attend the Public Hearing. 

Section 3. The Chair, the Vice Chair and/or any Officer of the Agency is hereby authorized 

and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform 

such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. All action taken by the Chair, the Vice Chair and/or any Officer of the Agency in 

connection with the Public Hearing with respect to the Project prior to the date of this Resolution is hereby 

ratified and confirmed. 



 

 

6 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

  



 

 

7 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 

resulted as follows: 

 

Christina Amato VOTING _____ 

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

VOTING 

VOTING 

_____ 

_____ 
Alexandra Church VOTING _____ 
Sharonda Powell VOTING _____ 
Vickiana DeMora VOTING _____ 

 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 



 

 

8 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 ) SS.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that  

 

I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of 

the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, held on October 21, 2024 with the original thereof 

on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution 

contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein 

referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; 

(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the 

“Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place 

of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum 

of the members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force and effect 

and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 

___ day of October 2024. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

  



 

 

9 
4886-4191-3069, v. 2 

EXHIBIT A 

 

NOTICE OF DEVIATION TO THE AFFECTED TAX JURISDICTIONS ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH AGENCY RESOLUTION DATED OCTOBER 21, 2024 

 



 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

83 Broadway, Third Floor 

Newburgh, New York 12551-1298 

Tel: 845-569-7369 

October ___, 2024 

CERTIFIED MAIL – RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

The Honorable Steven M. Neuhaus 

County Executive of Orange County 

Orange County Government Center 

255 Main Street 

Goshen, New York 10924 

Jackielyn Manning Campbell. 

Superintendent of Schools 

Newburgh Enlarged School District 

124 Grand Street 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Torrance Harvey, Mayor 

City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12551 

 

The Honorable Todd Venning, City 

Manager 

City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12551 

 

The Honorable Ramona Monteverde, 

Council Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDRESSEES CONTINUED  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Christine M. Bello, Board President 

Newburgh Enlarged School District 

124 Grand Street 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Giselle Martinez, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

The Honorable Robert Sklarz, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 2 

 

2 
 
4870-7291-5949, v. 4 

The Honorable Patty Sofokles, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

The Honorable Omar Shakur, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

The Honorable Robert McLymore, Council 

Member, City of Newburgh 

83 Broadway 

Newburgh, New York 12550 

 

RE:  Proposed Deviation from Uniform Tax Exemption 
policy by the City of Newburgh Industrial 
Development Agency (“Agency”) in connection with 

its Proposed 50-72 Liberty Street LLC Project 

Honorable Sirs and Madame: 

This letter is delivered to you pursuant to Section 874(4)(b) of the General Municipal Law (the 

“Act”). 

50-72 Liberty Street LLC, a New York limited liability company, or such other person(s) or 
entities as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (collectively, the 
"Company"), submitted an application to the Agency (the “Application”), a copy of which Application is 
on file at the office of the Agency and available at the Agency website (https://www.cityofnewburgh-
ny.gov/505/Industrial-Development-Agency-IDA), requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a 
project (the "Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) the 

acquisition of an interest in parcels of real property consisting of approximately 1.344 acres located at 50-
72 Liberty Street, Newburgh, New York (the “Land”), (2) the construction and improvement of a new 
mixed use building on the Land totaling approximately 200,000 square feet consisting of market-rate 
housing, affordable housing, commercial retail space and a parking garage (collectively, the “Facility”), 
and (4) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures, machinery, equipment and 
other tangible personal property (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the 
Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”), (B) the granting of certain 
“financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, 
including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer 
taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an 
obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be 

designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency.   

At its regular meeting held on October 21, 2024, the Company made a request to the Agency 
(the "Pilot Request") to enter into a payment in lieu of tax agreement (the "Proposed Pilot Agreement") 

which terms deviate from the Agency Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the "Policy"). (Capitalized terms 
not otherwise defined herein are defined in the Policy which can be viewed at 
https://www.cityofnewburgh-ny.gov/industrial-development-agency/pages/ida-projects.) At its October 
21, 2024 regular meeting, the Agency approved a Public Hearing Resolution.  The Public Hearing to 

consider the Project and the deviation from the Policy is scheduled for November __, 2024.   

Pursuant to Section 874(4) of the Act, and in accordance with the Policy, prior to taking final 
action on the Pilot Request for a deviation from the Policy, the Agency must adopt a resolution setting 
forth, with respect to the proposed deviation: (a) the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, (b) the 

https://www.cityofnewburgh-ny.gov/industrial-development-agency/pages/ida-projects


 

October __, 2024 

Page 3 

 

3 
 
4870-7291-5949, v. 4 

amount and nature of the proposed PILOT, and (c) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation.  At 
its regular meeting held on October 21, 2024, the Agency approved the issuance of this letter setting forth 

the reasons of the proposed deviation from the Policy as required by the Act and the Policy.     

The Proposed Pilot Agreement would be for a term of up to 32 years, with the Company making 

the payments in each year as a Pilot Payment as follows: 

[DRAFT - TO BE FINALIZED AFTER COMMENTS RECEIVED] 

PILOT 

TAX YEAR 

PILOT PAYMENT 

DUE 

APPROXIMATE 

PILOT 

PERCENTAGE* 

1 $108,750 31% 

2  $110,925 31% 

3 $113,144 31% 

4 $115,406 31% 

5 $117,714 31% 

6 $120,069 31% 

7 $122,470 31% 

8 $124,920 31% 

9 $127,418 31% 

10 $129,966 31% 

11 $132,566 31% 

12 $135,217 31% 

13  $137,921 31% 

14 $140,680 31% 

15  $143,493 31% 

16 $146,363 31% 

17 $149,290 31% 

18 $152,276 31% 

19 $155,322 31% 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 4 

 

4 
 
4870-7291-5949, v. 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

*For illustrative purposes only.   

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of (i) the Pilot Request, (ii) the proposed deviation 

from the Policy, and (iii) that the Agency is considering whether to grant the Pilot Request and to 
approve a Proposed Pilot Agreement conforming to the terms of the Pilot Request. The Agency expects 
to consider whether to approve the terms of the Proposed Pilot Agreement at the Public Hearing. The 
Public Hearing will also serve as the initial Public Hearing so that the Agency can hear comments from 
the public on the proposed financial assistance being considered for the Project.  You are encouraged to 

submit written comments to the Agency prior to or at the hearing date on November __, 2024.  This 

letter is forwarded to you for purposes of complying with Section 874 of the Act and the Policy, which 

requires notice prior to the Agency taking final action with respect to the Proposed Pilot Agreement (if 

said Proposed Pilot Agreement may deviate from the provisions of the Policy). 

The Agency has considered the following factors in considering the proposed deviation from the 

Policy: 

1. The nature of the Project: construction and improvement of one (1) new mixed-

use building on the Land totaling approximately 200,000 square feet consisting of market-rate 

housing, affordable housing, commercial retail space and a parking garage. 

2. The present use of the property: vacant land.  The proposal would transform this 

vacant land into a vibrant mixed-use property bringing housing, jobs and tax revenue to the City. 

20 $158,428 31% 

21 $161,597 31% 

22 $164,829 31% 

23 $168,125 31% 

24 $171,488 31% 

25 $174,918 31% 

26 $178,416 31% 

27 $181,984 31% 

28 $185,624 31% 

29 $189,336 31% 

30 $193,123 31% 

31 $196,986 31% 

32 $200,925 31% 



 

October __, 2024 

Page 5 

 

5 
 
4870-7291-5949, v. 4 

3. The economic condition of the area at the time of the request of the Company 
and the economic multiplying effect that the Project will have on the area: At the time of the 
filing of the Application, the economic condition of the area in which the Project Facility is to be 

located is distressed.   

4. New revenue from development of the Project is projected to be (in accordance 
with the Agency Cost-benefit Analysis): $4,397,467 in new real property tax revenue; $48,343 in 
sales tax revenue related to construction; $259,463 in sales tax revenue related to operating the 
Project Facility during the period of the proposed PILOT; $15,628 in annual sales tax revenue 

related to new household spending or $752,512 over the life of the proposed PILOT.    

5. The extent to which the Project will create or retain permanent, private sector 

jobs and the number of jobs to be created or retained and the salary range of such jobs:  

(a) In the Application, the Company’s anticipates two jobs associated with the 
residential management of the Project earning an annual average salary of $75,000.  The 
Company also anticipates 6-18 full-time and part-time jobs at the commercial units, 
generating an average salary of $42,500 annually. The average new jobs is anticipated to 
be 14 (professional, managerial, semi-skilled and unskilled), which are expected to be 
maintained through duration of the proposed PILOT.  Upon completion of the Project, it 
is estimated that the anticipated employment at the Project will generate approximately 

$660,000 in wages annually and $2.1 million in sales tax revenues.  

(b) The construction phase of the Project is anticipated to create approximately 148 
direct, on-site construction jobs and 10 indirect jobs.  Combining direct and indirect 
impacts, the construction phase of the Project is expected to create 158 jobs that are 
expected to generate approximately $6,700,000.00 in wages and more that $17 million in 

sales tax revenue. The Applicant has indicated that the majority of the construction jobs 

will be filled by local labor in compliance with the Agency’s Local Labor Policy.   

6. The estimated value of new tax exemptions to be provided: Real property tax 
exemption benefit of approximately $10,758,000 (estimated per the Agency Cost-Benefit 
Analysis); mortgage recording tax exemption of approximately $650,000 (per the Application); 

and sales tax exemption benefit of approximately $1,354,166.67 (per the Application). 

7. The economic impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on affected tax 
jurisdictions: The economic impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on affected tax jurisdictions 
is positive.  The existing assessments at the Project site will be paid in full.  The proposed PILOT 
Agreement will apply to the improvements made to the Project site and will result in an inflow of 
net revenue to the City, the County and the School District where today there is none.  The 
development of the Project Facility is expected to result in local construction jobs, the creation of 

permanent jobs and the development of additional retail.  

8. The impact of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on existing and proposed 
businesses and economic development projects in the vicinity: The impact of the Project is a 
positive one on the community.  The area around the Project is deteriorated due the land included 

in the Project being contaminated and vacant.  



 

October __, 2024 

Page 6 

 

6 
 
4870-7291-5949, v. 4 

9. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by 

the Proposed Pilot Agreement: $74,273,933. 

10. The effect of the Proposed Pilot Agreement on the environment: The Project is 

consistent with housing and retail improvements for similar sites and it is anticipated that there 

will be no detrimental impact on the environment.   

11. Project timing: Anticipated to be completed within two (2) years of the 

commencement date of approximately fourth quarter 2026. 

12. Development/redevelopment impacts:  The Project will bring a productive use to 

a vacant land.               

13. Type of development:  The Project consists of the construction and development 

of one (1) new building on the Land totaling approximately 200,000 square feet for market-rate 

and affordable housing and commercial retail uses.   

14. Creation of jobs:  Upon its completion, the Project will bring approximately 

eight (8) new permanent jobs to the surrounding area. 

The Agency will consider the Proposed Pilot Agreement (and the proposed deviation from the 
Policy) at the Public Hearing. The Agency would welcome any written comments that you might have on 
this proposed deviation from the Policy. In accordance with Section 874(4)(c) of the Act, prior to taking 
final action at the Public Hearing, the Agency will review and respond to any written comments received 
from any affected tax jurisdiction with respect to the proposed deviation. The Agency will also allow any 
representative of any affected tax jurisdiction present at the Public Hearing to address the Agency 

regarding the proposed deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.   

If you have any questions or comments regarding the foregoing, please do not hesitate to contact 

me at the above telephone number. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

____________________, Chair 

City of Newburgh 

Industrial Development Agency 

 



CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-04 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE ACTION TO UNDERTAKE A PROJECT 

FOR THE BENEFIT OF IV5 NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER LLC WILL 

NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

A regular meeting of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”) was convened in public session at City Hall, 83 Broadway, 3rd Floor, Newburgh, New 
York on October 21, 2024 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 

called, the following members of the Agency were: 

PRESENT: 

Christina Amato 

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

Alexandra Church 

Vickiana DeMora 

Sharonda Powell 

ABSENT: 

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 

Cherisse Vickers Executive Director 

Robert J. McLaughlin, Esq. and 

David Craft, Esq. Agency Counsel 

The following resolution was offered by ________________, seconded by 

_________________________, to wit: 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE ACTION TO UNDERTAKE A PROJECT FOR 

THE BENEFIT OF IV5 NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER LLC WILL NOT HAVE 

A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

WHEREAS, City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act” or the “Act”) and Chapter 577 
of the 1982 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 913 of said General Municipal 
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) 
to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, 
improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, 
commercial, and research and recreation facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, 
attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New 
York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and 
economic deterioration; and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered 
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in 
the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to 
convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2023, IV5 Newburgh South Logistics Center LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, or such other person(s) or entities as may be designated by 
the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (collectively, the "Company"), submitted an 
application to the Agency, which application has been updated and amended by the Company 
prior to this meeting (collectively, the “Application”), a copy of which Application is on file at 
the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the 
"Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) the 
acquisition of an interest in a parcel of real property consisting of approximately 49.60 acres 
located at 700 South Street, Newburgh, New York (the “Land”), (2) the construction and 
improvement of a new warehouse distribution building on the Land totaling approximately 
416,320 square feet (the “Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon 
of related fixtures, machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the 
“Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as 
the “Project Facility”), (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of 
Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from 
certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording 
taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) 
or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the 
Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York, at 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations” and collectively with the SEQR 
Act, “SEQRA”), the Agency has been informed that (1) the City of Newburgh Planning Board 
(the “Planning Board”) declared itself to act as “lead agency” for a “coordinated review” of a 



 

2 

 
4855-6875-6716, v. 3 

“Type 1 Action” with respect to the Project on December 21, 2021, (2) the Planning Board 
exercised due diligence in identifying other “involved agencies” known at that time; and (3) 
the Planning Board issued a Determination of Significance through the issuance of a Negative 
Declaration issued on May 16, 2023; and affirmed on July 18, 2023 (the “Negative 
Declaration”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, determining that the acquisition, reconstruction, 
renovation and installation of the Project Facility will not have any significant adverse 
environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency is an “involved agency” with respect to the Project and the 
Agency now desires to concur in the determination by the Planning Board, as “lead agency” 
with respect to the Project, to acknowledge receipt of a copy of the Negative Declaration and 
to indicate whether the Agency has any information to suggest that the Planning Board was 
incorrect in determining that the Project will not have a “significant effect on the environment” 
pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no environmental impact statement need to be prepared 
with respect to the Project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CITY OF 
NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Agency has received copies of, and has reviewed, the submitted materials 
to the Lead Agency, including (i) the completed and filed Part 1 of the Full Environmental 
Assessment Form (“EAF”) as completed by the National Builders South, LP, the prior Project 
sponsor before the Company acquired control of the Project in July of 2023, (ii) Parts 2 and 3 of 
the EAF as completed by the Planning Board, and (iii) the Negative Declaration (collectively, 
the “Reviewed Documents”) and, based upon said Reviewed Documents, the Agency hereby 
ratifies and concurs in the designation of the Planning Board as “lead agency” with respect to the 
Project under SEQRA (as such quoted term is defined in SEQRA). 

Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has no information to 
suggest that the Planning Board was incorrect in determining that the Project will not have a 
“significant effect on the environment” pursuant to the SEQRA and, therefore, that an 
environmental impact statement need not be prepared with respect to the Project (as such quoted 
phrase is used in SEQRA). 

Section 3. The Chairperson, any Vice Chairperson and/or Executive Director of the 
Agency is hereby directed to (A) send a copy of this Resolution to the chief executive officer of 
the City of Newburgh, New York; (B) send a copy of this Resolution to the Lead Agency; (C) 
send a copy of this Resolution to each entity identified by the Agency as an “involved agency” 
with respect to the Project (as such quoted term is used in SEQRA), (D) send a copy of this 
Resolution to the Company; (E) send a copy of this Resolution to each other person who has 
requested a copy of same, and (F) place a copy of this Resolution in the files of the Agency that 
are readily accessible to the public and made available on request. 

Section 4.            This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

 



 

3 

 
4855-6875-6716, v. 3 

Christina Amato   VOTING 

Gregory Nato    VOTING 

Michael Neppl    VOTING 

Alexandra Church   VOTING 

Vickiana DeMora   VPTING 

Sharonda Powell   VOTING  

 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.  



 

4 

 
4855-6875-6716, v. 3 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) SS.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the 

minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, 

held on October 21, 2024 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 

and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution contained therein and of the whole of said 

original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; 

(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law 

(the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the 

time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and 

(D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency 

this __  day of October 2024. 

 

 

       

Secretary 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Negative Declaration 

 





2

11. Traffic Study (192 pages), received May 25, 2022; 

12. Complete Streets Checklist (2 pages), received July 8, 2022; 

13. Applicant Response Letter (10 pages), received December 10, 2021, updated July 8, 2022 

(17 pages), March 10, 2023 (64 pages), and July 7, 2023 (11 pages, plus attachment and 

exhibit references); 

14. Applicant Response Letter to the New York State Department of Transportation (“DOT”) 

(9 pages), dated July 28, 2022; 

15. Comments of the Conservation Advisory Council (2 pages), dated December 20, 2021; 

16. Comments of the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (“DEC”) (3 

pages), dated May 17, 2022; updated April 13, 2023 (14 pages); 

17. DEC Site Management Plan (42 pages), received July 8, 2022; 

18. Comments of the New York State DOT (1 page), dated February 22, 2023; 

19. Informational Inspection Report of the Building Inspector (3 pages), dated May 10, 2021;  

20. Comments of the City Planner (3 pages), dated October 19, 2021; revised December 17, 

2021 (4 pages), June 21, 2022 (5 pages), July 19, 2022 (4 pages), September 20, 2022 (7 

pages), March 21, 2023 (8 pages), May 16, 2023 (10 pages), July 18, 2023 (11 pages); and 

21. Comments of the City Engineer (5 pages), dated October 19, 2021; revised December 17, 

2021 (8 pages), June 21, 2022 (9 pages), July 19, 2022 (13 pages), September 20, 2022 (13 

pages), March 21, 2023 (16 pages), May 16, 2023 (16 pages), July 18, 2023 (17 pages). 

LET IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED 

That the Planning Board makes the following findings: 

1. The Planning Board has jurisdiction to review and approve the application. 

2. The Applicant made an application to the Planning Board for Site Plan approval to construct 

a warehouse on vacant land (Warehouse).  The Applicant filed a Land Development 

Application and various exhibits in a manner and form acceptable to the City Engineer, City 

Planner, and Planning Board.  The Application and subsequent submissions were reviewed 

by the Planning Board and made available to the public.   

3. The subject property is located in the Industrial (I) zone. 

4. The proposed use is allowed pending Site Plan approval from the Planning Board. 

5. The Planning Board first reviewed the application materials for the completeness on October 

19, 2021.  The Planning Board deemed the application substantially complete on July 18, 

2023. 

6. The Planning Board, pursuant to City Code Section 300-90, waived a public hearing at its 

regular meeting on December 21, 2021.  



3

7. The action is a Type I action pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act 

(“SEQRA”).  The Applicant completed and filed Part I of the Full EAF, pursuant to the State 

Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”).  The Planning Board completed Parts 2 and 

3 of the Full EAF.  The Planning Board declared its intent to act as Lead Agency for 

environmental review on October 19, 2021.  The Planning Board declared itself as the Lead 

Agency for the environmental review of the Project pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.6 on 

December 21, 2021.  The Applicant consented waived any deadline for the Planning Board 

to make a SEQRA determination on December 21, 2021.  The Planning Board determined, 

based upon an examination of the Full EAF and other available supporting information and 

considering the magnitude and importance of each area of environmental concern, and 

based on the City's knowledge of the location of the Project, that the granting of the 

application would not have a significant adverse environmental impact, would not require 

the preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Statement.  The Planning Board further 

found no areas of potentially large impact of environmental concern that cannot be 

mitigated, and as such, issued a Negative Declaration pursuant to SEQRA with respect to 

the impact of the Project upon the environment on May 16, 2023.  Copies of the Full EAF 

parts 1, 2 and 3 are attached as Exhibit A. 

8. The Planning Board found that the City of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals approved 

necessary area variances for the project on June 27, 2023. 

9. The Planning Board found, based on a review of the materials submitted, representations 

made by the Applicant, and discussions had at the Planning Board meetings, that the Site 

Plan should be approved as submitted, subject to conditions as articulated below. 

LET IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED 

That the Applicant’s approval is subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant shall satisfy all comments set forth in the Informational Inspection Report of 

the Building Inspector, dated May 10, 2021; 

2. The Property Owner shall grant easements in recordable form, acceptable to both the City 

and the Orange County Clerk, in favor of the City of Newburgh as depicted on the most 

recent Site Plan submission; 

3. The Applicant shall comply with any requirements issued by the NYSDEC, including but 

not limited to the SMP, related to the property; 

4. The Applicant shall comply with any requirements issued by the NYSDOT, including but 

not limited to highway work permits, related to the property; 

5. The Applicant shall satisfy all comments set forth in the Comment Letter of the City Planner, 

dated July 18, 2023; and  











































































 

 

 

CITY OF NEWBURGH 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

Resolution No. 2024-10-21-05 

 

APPROVING RESOLUTION 

IV5 NEWBURGH SOUTH LOGISTICS CENTER LLC PROJECT 

 

A regular meeting of City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 

was convened in public session at City Hall, 83 Broadway, Newburgh, New York on October 21, 

2024 at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time. 

 

 The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 

called, the following members of the Agency were: 

 

PRESENT: 

Christina Amato   

Gregory Nato  

Michael Neppl  

Alexandra Church  

Vickiana DeMora  

Sharonda Powell  

  

 

ABSENT: 

 

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 

Cherisse Vickers Executive Director 

Robert J. McLaughlin, Esq. and  

David Craft, Esq. Agency Counsel 

  

 

The following resolution was offered by _________________________, seconded by 

_______________________________ , to wit: 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH A LEASE/LEASEBACK TRANSACTION FOR A 

PROJECT AND PROJECT ASSIGNMENT FOR IV5 NEWBURGH SOUTH 

LOGISTICS CENTER LLC. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 

authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 

constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the 

Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 577 of the 1982 

Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 913 of said General Municipal Law (said 

Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, 

develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, 

maintaining, equipping and furnishing of industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, 

and research and recreation facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and 

developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, 

general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve 

their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic 

deterioration; and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered 

under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease, improve, maintain, equip, and furnish one 

or more “projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, 

reconstructed, leased, improved, maintained, equipped and furnished, and to convey said projects 

or to lease said projects; and 

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2023, IV5 Newburgh South Logistics Center LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company, or such other person(s) or entities as may be designated by 

the Company and agreed upon by the Agency (collectively, the "Company"), submitted an 

application to the Agency, which application has been updated and amended by the Company 

prior to this meeting (collectively, the “Application”), a copy of which Application is on file at 

the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the 

"Project") for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) the 

acquisition of an interest in a parcel of real property consisting of approximately 49.60 acres 

located at 700 South Street, Newburgh, New York (the “Land”), (2) the construction and 

improvement of a new warehouse distribution building on the Land totaling approximately 

416,320 square feet (the “Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon 

of related fixtures, machinery, equipment and other tangible personal property (collectively, the 

“Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the Equipment hereinafter collectively referred to as 

the “Project Facility”), (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of 

Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from 

certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording 

taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to 



 

2 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be 

designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on February 21, 2024 

(the “First Public Hearing Resolution”), the Agency authorized a public hearing to be held 

pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization contained in the First Public Hearing 

Resolution, the Chair and the Executive Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public 

hearing of the Agency (the “First Public Hearing”) pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, to hear 

all persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the 

Agency with respect to the Project, to be mailed on March 6, 2024 to the chief executive officers 

of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is to 

be located, (B) caused notice of the First Public Hearing to be posted on February 29, 2024 on 

the Agency’s website and also on a public bulletin board located at the Newburgh City Hall 

located at 83 Broadway, City of Newburgh, Orange County, New York, (C) caused notice of the 

First Public Hearing to be published on March 6, 2024 in the Times Herald Record, a newspaper 

of general circulation available to the residents of the City of Newburgh, Orange County, New 

York, (D) conducted the First Public Hearing on March 27, 2024 at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time 

at offices of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency located at City Hall, 83 

Broadway, Orange County, Newburgh, New York, and (E) caused to be prepared a report of the 

First Public Hearing (the “First Public Hearing Report”) fairly summarizing the views presented 

at such First Public Hearing and caused a copy of said First Public Hearing Report to be made 

available to the members of the Agency and the public by posting the same to the Agency 

website; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 17, 2024 (the 

“Second Public Hearing Resolution”), the Agency authorized a public hearing to be held 

pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to the Project and the amendment to the 

Application submitted by the Company; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization contained in the Second Public Hearing 

Resolution, the Chair and the Executive Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public 

hearing of the Agency (the “Second Public Hearing” and with the First Public Hearing, the 

“Public Hearing”) pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, to hear all persons interested in the 

Project and the financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the 

Project, to be mailed on July 8, 2024 to the chief executive officers of the county and of each 

city, town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is to be located, (B) caused 

notice of the Second Public Hearing to be posted on July 8, 2024 on the Agency’s website and 

July 22, 2024 to be posted on a public bulletin board located at the Newburgh City Hall located 

at 83 Broadway, City of Newburgh, Orange County, New York, (C) caused notice of the Second 

Public Hearing to be published on July 12, 2024 in the Times Herald Record, a newspaper of 

general circulation available to the residents of the City of Newburgh, Orange County, New 

York, (D) conducted the Second Public Hearing on July 25, 2024 at 6:00 o'clock p.m., local time 

at offices of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency located at City Hall, 83 



 

3 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

Broadway, Orange County, Newburgh, New York, and (E) caused to be prepared a report of the 

Second Public Hearing (the “Second Public Hearing Report”) fairly summarizing the views 

presented at such Second Public Hearing and caused a copy of said Second Public Hearing 

Report to be made available to the members of the Agency and the public by posting the same to 

the Agency website; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B 

of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations 

adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New 

York at 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations”, and collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), 

the Agency has been informed that (1) the City of Newburgh Planning Board (the “Planning 

Board”) declared itself to act as “lead agency” for a “coordinated review” of a “Type I Action” 

with respect to the Project on December 21, 2021, (2) the Planning Board exercised due 

diligence in identifying other “involved agencies” known at that time; and (3) the Planning 

Board issued a Determination of Significance through the issuance of an Negative Declaration 

issued on May 16, 2023 and affirmed on July 18, 2023 (the “Negative Declaration”), attached 

hereto as Exhibit A, determining that the acquisition, reconstruction, renovation and installation 

of the Project Facility will not have any significant adverse environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency determined by Resolution No. 2024-10-21-04 dated October 21, 

2024 that (i) the Agency is an “involved agency” with respect to the Project, (ii) the Agency (1) 

concurred in the determination by the Planning Board, as “lead agency” with respect to the 

Project, to acknowledge receipt of a copy of the Negative Declaration and (2) determined that it 

had no information to suggest that the Planning Board was incorrect in determining that the 

Project will not have a “significant effect on the environment” pursuant to SEQRA and (iii) that 

by reason of the foregoing, the Agency determined that no environmental impact statement need 

be prepared with respect to the Project; and  

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project qualifies for Financial 

Assistance as a commercial project within the meaning of the Act, the Agency has reviewed the 

following (collectively, the “Project Qualification Documents”): (A) the Application; (B) the 

published Cost Benefit Analysis dated December 22, 2023, as amended and updated (the 

“CBA”), and prepared by the MRB Group at the request of the Agency and which was discussed 

with the public at the Public Hearing; (C) the published Test of Reasonableness dated December 

22, 2023, as amended and updated, and prepared by the MRB Group at the request of the Agency 

and which was discussed with the public at the Public Hearing; (D) the transcripts of the Public 

Hearing, respectively; and (E) copies of correspondence from governmental officials supporting 

the commercial/economic impacts of the Project (the “Local Support”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the CBA, the Project is projected to (A) create approximately 

105 direct and indirect full-time equivalent construction jobs at the Project Facility during the 

approximately twelve month construction period; (B) create approximately 37 direct and indirect 

ongoing full-time equivalent jobs at the Project Facility and (C) projected to generate annual 

sales tax and real property tax revenue to the City of Newburgh and Orange County of 



 

4 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

approximately $6 million over the period of the PILOT when the Project Facility becomes 

operational; and   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Test of Reasonableness, the requested Financial Assistance 

is reasonable and will provide the Company (A) a reasonable, risk-adjusted internal rate of 

return; and (B) permit an acceptable debt service ratio coverage for the Project for financing 

purposes; and  

WHEREAS, during the Public Hearing, no letters, petitions and/or signatures in 

opposition were received by the Agency; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 862(2)(b) of the Act, the Agency would be authorized to 

provide financial assistance in respect of the Project provided that the obligation of the Agency 

to proceed with the Project was subject to certain conditions, including, following compliance 

with the procedural requirements of Section 859-a of the Act, a finding by the Agency that the 

Project would preserve permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York or increase the 

overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York; and 

WHEREAS, having complied with the requirements of SEQRA and Section 859-a of the 

Act with respect to the Project, the Agency now desires, pursuant to Section 862(2)(c) of the Act, 

to make its final findings with respect to the Project and its final determination whether to 

proceed with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, subject to compliance with the terms hereof and the execution and delivery 

of the Lease Documents (as defined hereinbelow) by each of the Company and, as applicable, 

the Agency will: (i)  designate  the  Company  as  its agent for the purpose of acquiring, 

constructing, equipping and completing the Project pursuant to a project agreement setting forth 

the Finance Assistance being provided (the "Project Agreement"); (ii) acquire a leasehold 

interest in the Project through the negotiation, execution and  delivery of a lease agreement (the 

"Lease Agreement"), a leaseback agreement (the "Leaseback Agreement"), a bill of sale (the 

"Bill of Sale"), an environmental compliance and indemnification agreement (the 

"Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement") and all other documents and 

certificates required by the Agency to confer the approved Financial Assistance, each of the 

foregoing with the Company (the "Miscellaneous Documents" and together with the Project 

Agreement, the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the Bill of Sale and the 

Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, collectively, the "Lease 

Documents"); (iii) secure the Company's borrowings with respect to the Project Facility by 

joining in one or more construction or permanent mortgages and assignment of leases and rents 

on the Project Facility in favor of the Company's lender(s); (iv) provide the Financial Assistance 

to the Company in the form of (a) State and local sales and use tax exemption for purchases and 

rentals related to the acquisition, construction, equipping and completion of the Project, (b) a 

payment in lieu of tax agreement, and (c) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financing 

related to the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lease Documents, in substantially similar form to those used for other 

projects, and related documents will be negotiated and presented to the Agency for execution and 

delivery subject to the approval of these resolutions. 



 

5 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CITY OF 

NEWBURGH INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. All action taken by the Chairperson and/or any Member or staff of the 

Agency with respect to the Public Hearing with respect to the Project and the requested Financial 

Assistance is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

Section 2. The law firm of Whiteman Osterman & Hanna LLP is hereby appointed 

Agency Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in connection with the Project. Agency 

Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of the Company and Assignee, to 

work with the Company and Assignee, counsel to the Company and Assignee, and others to 

prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions 

contemplated by this Resolution. Agency Counsel has prepared and submitted an initial draft of 

the Agency Documents to staff of the Agency. 

 

Section 3. The Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 

powers granted to it under the Act; 

(B) The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act; 

(C) The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of the City of Newburgh, 

Orange County, New York; 

(D) It is estimated at the present time that the costs of the planning, development, 

acquisition, construction, and installation of the Project Facility (collectively, the “Project 

Costs”) will be approximately $53,454,900.00. 

(E) The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility 

of any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to 

another area in the State of New York and will not result in the abandonment of one or more 

plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State of New York; 

(F) The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property that 

are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally 

visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the total cost of the Project, and 

accordingly, the Project is not prohibited by the provisions of Section 862(2)(a) of the Act, and 

(2) accordingly the Agency is authorized to provide financial assistance in respect of the Project 

pursuant to Section 862(2)(a) of the Act; 

(G) The Agency has determined: (i) the Project is located in a “highly distressed area” 

(as defined in the Act); (ii) (1) the Project Facility will provide necessary infrastructure and other 

opportunities for area employers and businesses, (2) the completion of the Project Facility will 

have a positive impact upon the creation, retention and expansion of employment opportunities 

in the City of Newburgh and in the State of New York; (3) the completion of the Project will 



 

6 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

assist in promoting employment opportunities and assist in preventing economic deterioration in 

the City of Newburgh and in the State of New York; (4) the acquisition, construction and 

installation of the Project Facility is essential to the creation of new employment opportunities 

and is essential to the prevention of economic deterioration of businesses and neighborhoods 

located in the City of Newburgh; (5) the undertaking of the Project will serve the public purposes 

of the Act by preserving and creating permanent private sector jobs in the State of New York; (6)  

the Project will create product use of vacant industrial land in the City of Newburgh; and (8) the 

granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote and 

maintain the general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of the City of Newburgh, 

Orange County, New York and the State of New York and improve their standard of living, by 

providing a commercial project, thereby serving the public purposes of the Act; 

(H) The Agency has reviewed all information it has received relating to the Project 

including without limitation the Application and related supplemental materials submitted by the 

Company, the Public Hearing Report.  After consideration of such information, documents, 

comments and opinions, the Agency finds as follows: 

(i) The Agency Documents will require that the Company, or its successors 

or assigns, comply with any requirements of the City Planning Board and 

Department of Buildings prior to the receipt of any Financial Assistance; 

and 

 

(ii) Special Districts will not be affected by the PILOT Request; and 

 

(iii) In the event the Company cancels or withdraws from the Payment in Lieu 

of Tax Agreement prior to its termination as described in the closing 

documents with the Agency, the Uniform Project Benefits Agreement will 

provide for the recapture of the real property taxes which would otherwise 

have been due in consideration of the Project; and 

 

(iv) By reason of the Pilot Request, the Agency reviewed the CBA and the 

Test of Reasonableness Report prepared by the Agency’s consultant.  The 

Test of Reasonableness Report concludes that the requested Financial 

Assistance is reasonable and will provide the Company (A) a reasonable, 

risk-adjusted internal rate of return; and (B) permit an acceptable debt 

service ratio coverage for the Project for financing purposes.  

 

(I) The Project should receive the Financial Assistance in the form of exemption 

from certain (i) sales and use taxes; (ii) real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes; 

and (iii)  real property taxes based on (1) the Company’s statement that the Project will not 

proceed without such Financial Assistance, including the PILOT Request, and (2) the CBA and 

Test of Reasonableness undertaken by the Agency and the description of expected public 

benefits to occur as a result of this Project, as described on Exhibit A attached hereto and failure 



 

7 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

by the Assignee to meet the expected public benefits will result in a recapture event, as described 

on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

(J) In accordance with the CBA, the projected total Financial Assistance provided to 

the Company for the Project is as follows: 

 

TYPE OF FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE 

AMOUNT OF 

APPROVED 

FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE  

Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits $1,507,500 

Payment in Lieu of Real Estate Taxes $4,185,659 (cumulative) 

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $280,818 

TOTAL APPROVED  

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

$5,973, 977 
 

 

(K) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the Application 

and to enter into the Agency Documents. 

Section 4. The Agency is hereby authorized, without limitation (A) to acquire a 

license in the Licensed Premises pursuant to the License Agreement, if applicable, (B) to acquire 

a leasehold interest in the Leased Premises pursuant to the Underlying Lease, (C) to acquire title 

to the Equipment pursuant to a bill of sale (the “Bill of Sale to Agency”) from the Assignee to 

the Agency, and (D) to do all things necessary or appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, 

and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such acquisitions are hereby 

approved, ratified and confirmed. 

Section 5. The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire, construct and install the 

Project Facility as described in the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or 

appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with 

respect to such acquisition, construction and installation are hereby ratified, confirmed and 

approved. 

Section 6. The Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall provide for PILOT 

Payments based on the following percentage exemptions: 

TAX YEAR Percentage of 

Exemption* 

1 100% 

2 75% 

3 75% 



 

8 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* On future assessments related to improvements to be made as part of the Project. 

Section 7. The Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) of the Agency, with the assistance 

of Agency Counsel, is authorized to negotiate and approve the form and substance of the Agency 

Documents.  

Section 8.  (A) The Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson, or the Executive Director of 

the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agency 

Documents, and, where appropriate, the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is 

hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in the forms 

thereof as the Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) shall approve, the execution thereof by the 

Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

(B) The Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) of the Agency is hereby further 

authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of 

the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Lease Agreement). 

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or 

provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and deliver all such 

additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses 

and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, 

employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing Resolution 

and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 

Agency Documents binding upon the Agency. 

Section 10. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

  

4 75% 

5 60% 

6 50% 

7 40% 

8 30% 

9 20% 

10 10% 



 

9 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

Christina Amato 

Gregory Nato 

Michael Neppl 

Alexandra Church 

Vickiana DeMora 

Sharonda Powell  

VOTING 

VOTING 

VOTING 

VOTING 

VOTING 

VOTING 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

  



 

10 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) SS.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency 

(the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of 

the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained 

therein, held on October 21, 2024 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same 

is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution contained therein and of the 

whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due 

notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open 

Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout 

said meeting. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Agency this __  day of October 2024. 

 

 

       

Secretary 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 



 

A-1 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXPECTED PUBLIC BENEFITS 

In the discussions had between the Project Beneficiary (IV5 Newburgh South Logistics 

Center LLC) and the Agency with respect to the Project Beneficiary’s request for Financial 

Assistance (including, without limitation, the PILOT Request) from the Agency with respect to 

the Project, the Project Beneficiary has represented to the Agency that the Project is expected to 

provide the following benefits to the Agency and/or to the residents of the City of Newburgh, 

Orange County, New York (the “Public Benefits”): 

 

Description of Benefit Applicable to 

Project (indicate 

Yes or No) 

Expected Benefit 

1. Retention of existing jobs  Yes X No Zero (0) full time equivalent 

existing jobs at the Project 

Facility (vacant or abandoned 

land). 

2. Creation of new permanent jobs X Yes  No Thirty-one (31) full time or part 

time private sector jobs at the 

Project Facility and up to six (6) 

indirect full time or part time 

private sector jobs at the Project 

Facility within twelve (12) 

months of completion of the 

Project. 

3. Estimated of tax exemptions X Yes  No Approximately (i) $1, 507,500 in 

sales tax exemption; (ii) 

$4,185,659 in real estate tax 

exemption; and (iii) $280,818 in 

mortgage recording tax 

exemption  

4. Creation of construction employment 

for local labor (i.e., labor resident in 

the area comprised of Hudson Valley 

Region as described in Agency Local 

Labor Policy) 

X Yes  No Average of sixty-eight (68) 

direct and thirty-seven (37) 

indirect full time equivalent 

construction jobs at the Project 

Facility for local labor during an 

estimated construction period of 

twelve (12) months, 

commencing within three (3) 

months of the closing of the 

Lease Documents.  The 

Company agrees that the Project 

will comply with the Agency’s 

Local Labor Policy. In 

connection with Labor Policy, 

the Agency will contract with an 

independent consultant to review 

the Company’s compliance with 



 

A-2 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

the Labor Policy and the 

Company will establish an 

escrow account with the Agency 

for the purposes of paying the 

costs and fees of such 

independent consultant.   

5. Private sector investment X Yes  No $53,454,900.00 invested at the 

Project Facility within twelve 

(12) months of the date of the 

Approving Resolution for the 

Project.  

6. Creation of new revenues for local 

taxing jurisdictions 

X Yes  No $5,598,447 of new revenues for 

local taxing jurisdictions and 

special districts with respect to 

the Project Facility within 

twenty-four (24) months of the 

date of completion of Project 

operations by the 

Company/Project Beneficiary.  

7. Attract customers from outside the 

Economic Development Region 

Yes X No Project is a warehouse 

distribution center. 

8. Adaptive reuse of an existing 

deteriorating structure. 

Yes X No Project is new construction on 

vacant land. 

9. Regional wealth creation (majority of 

sales/customers from outside of the 

City) 

X Yes  No The Project will serve as a 

distribution center to a tenant 

which serves a market beyond 

the City.  

10. Alignment with local planning and 

development efforts 

X Yes  No The City Planning Department 

has approved the Project. 

11. Promotes walkable community areas X Yes  No Project will create daily/multiple 

day employees in the City, 

which will promote local use of 

restaurants, entertainment and 

other amenities. 

12. Elimination or reduction in blight X Yes  No Current land is a brownfield, is 

vacant and underutilized.   

13. Historic building designation Yes X No Not applicable. 

14. Brownfield remediation X Yes  No Project redevelops a current 

brownfield site. 

 



 

B-1 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF THE RECAPTURE EVENTS 

In connection with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance, the Agency 

and the Project Beneficiary/Company agree that the following shall constitute recapture events 

with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance: 

 

1. Failure of the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency the  

commencement of the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation, and/or 

installation of the Project Facility within four (4) months of the date of the Approving 

Resolution for the Project. 

2. Failure of the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency the 

completion of the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation, and/or 

installation of the Project Facility within twelve (12) months of the commencement of 

construction. 

3. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency the 

creation of at least 85% of the average full time equivalent local labor construction jobs 

at the Project Facility during the construction period described on Exhibit A. 

4. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency the 

creation of at least 85% of the full time equivalent new jobs at the Project Facility listed 

on Exhibit A. 

5. Failure by the Project beneficiary to develop a program designed to focus job 

opportunities for residents from the City of Newburgh and Orange County at the Project 

within six (6) months of closing on the Lease Documents. 

6. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency that at 

least 80% of the private sector investment described on Exhibit A occurred with respect 

to the Project Facility within eight (8) months of the date of the Approving Resolution 

for the Project. 

7. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency that at 

least 80% of the new revenues for local taxing jurisdictions and special districts 

described on Exhibit A attached hereto were created within twenty-four (24) months of 

the date of completion of the Project by the Project Beneficiary. 

8. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to document to the satisfaction of the Agency that the 

Project has substantially complied with the requirements of the Agency SEQR 

Resolution. 

9. Liquidation of substantially all of the Project Beneficiary’s (or its members or related 

party) operating assets at the Project Facility and/or cessation of substantially all of the 

Project Beneficiary's operations at the Project Facility during the initial 10 years after 

completion of the Project. 

10. Relocation of all or substantially all of Project Beneficiary’s operations at the Project 

Facility to another site, or the sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of 

the Project Facility at any time. 

11. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to comply with the annual reporting requirements or 

to provide the Agency with requested information. 

12. Sublease or assignment of all or part of the Project Facility in violation of any Project 

Facility Agreement. 



 

B-2 
 
4876-1825-0211, v. 5 

13. A change in the use of the Project Facility, other than as described on Exhibit A and 

other directly and indirectly related uses, in violation of any Project Facility Agreement. 

14. Failure by the Project Beneficiary to use best efforts to secure a sub-lease(s) with end-

user sub-tenant(s) of the Project Facility, within six (6) months of the date of 

completion of the Project by the Project Beneficiary, which sub-lease(s) include 

obligations for the sub-tenant(s) to comply with the Lease Documents.  

15 Failure by the Project Beneficiary to use best efforts to establish an apprenticeship 

program with Orange County Community College or other workforce development or 

training program serving the City of Newburgh residents for construction industry jobs 

within one (1) month of commencement of construction.  

 

 




